
       
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Billy Bain 
Vice Mayor Mara Zapata, Ph.D.                          Councilman Bob Best 
Councilwoman Maria Puente Mitchell                  Councilman Jaime Petralanda  
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred from 
further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of 
the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks and 
comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 11, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 

Virtual Council Meeting  
(see p. 3-4 for instructions on how to access the meeting) 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

   
3. Agenda / Order of Business 

 
4. Awards & Presentations: None. 
 
5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. This portion of the meeting also 
includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open Forum is to encourage residents 
and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments on any item.  The City 
Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any question, issue, 
and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council meetings and shall 
conduct the meetings accordingly.  

 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) April 27, 2020 – Regular Meeting 

 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 

 
8. Public Hearings:  None. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted): 
 

A) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council approve an expenditure in an amount 
not to exceed $11,420 in FY 2019-2020 for the first year acquisition of software, hardware, 
maintenance for the My Senior Center software from Xavus Solutions LLC (“Xavus”) and $1,950 
annually for maintenance beginning in Fiscal Year 2020-2021.  

 
 



10. Old Business: None. 
 
11. New Business:  

 
A) RESOLUTION - A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, RATIFYING ALL EMERGENCY ORDERS ISSUED AND 
ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE CITY MANAGER RELATED TO NOVEL CORONAVIRUS/COVID-19; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
B) COVID-19 Departmental Updates 
 
C) Request by Triana Florio from MSSH, to hold am MS/VG High School Senior Social 

Distancing Parade on Saturday, May 23rd at 6:00 p.m. 
 
12. Other Business: 
 

A) Discussion on Memorial Day and July 4th events  
 

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
14. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a virtual Council meeting on: 

Monday, May 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

The meeting agenda is available online at: 
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate through video conference. 

 
Members of the public may watch or call in to the virtual public meeting live by following these 

instructions: 
 

WATCH THE VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast) 
• YouTube: LIVE  https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 
• From your computer/mobile device: LIVE https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 
There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 
the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting 
with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: Your 
Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. Public 
comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the agenda, if 
any.  

LIVE REMOTE & TELEPHONE COMMENTS: If there is a public comment portion of the agenda or the 
City Council opens a matter for public comment, live remote public comments will be accepted as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, please press *9 from your telephone. You will be called on to 
speak during public comments and identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the virtual meeting, when your name or last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  

Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information before 
delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you 
are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

Decorum: Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


the City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission 
to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal 
attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when addressing the 
Council during public comments. 
 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved and 
is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 
 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 
IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 
COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR 
HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE 
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations 
to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the 
City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  
 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County Code, 
any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office before 
addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all persons, 
firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or 
modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, 
recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City 
personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which 
has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby. A 
copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and online at: 
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 
 

Have questions or need additional information? 
Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 
Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 

 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


 
 1 

      
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 27, 2020 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 

Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:02 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Billy Bain 
Vice Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Mara Zapata, Ph.D.  
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda  
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Dan Espino 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Chief Armando Guzman 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
 
2. Salute to the Flag: Audience led the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business: None at this time. 
 
4. Awards & Presentations:  None at this time. 
 
5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 

Council:  There were no speakers at this time. 
 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 
 
A) March 9, 2020 – Regular Meeting 
B) April 20, 2020 – Special Meeting 
 

Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes of Regular meeting of March 9, 2020 
and Special meeting of April 20, 2020.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, 
Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 



 
 2 

 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 
 
8. Public Hearings:  None at this time. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted): 

 
A) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Distreebutors, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County contract #1298-1/21-1 
(attached), in an amount not to exceed $47,502.50, for the purchase of street tree planting 
and planting of street trees, as funds were budgeted in the FY18/19 Budget pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the City Code 

 
B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to open 

Purchase Order #200240 in the amount of $23,000.00 to BTS Land Service Corp. for tree 
trimming throughout the City.  Council approved $100,000.00, October 8, 2019 as funds 
were approved in the FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Royal Rent-A-Car Systems of Florida, utilizing Miami-Dade County’s Bid 
No. 8809-0/19, Vehicle Rental Services, in the amount of $10,388.00, for the monthly 
rental of two vehicles (for a 7-month period), as these funds qualify for expenditure from 
the Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, as funds are in the projected FY 19/20 Budget, 
pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code 

 
D) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Safeware, Inc., utilizing U.S. Communities Contract #4400008468, in 
the amount of $24,624.00 for the purchase of forty-five (45) Avon First Responder C50 gas 
masks kits, as funds are in the projected FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(5) of the City Code 

 
E) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council waive the competitive bid 

process in the best interests of the City, mainly due to they are the only local vendor in 
Miami-Dade County to provide police uniforms (we’ve established over a twenty-year 
relationship), and approve an expenditure to Lou’s Police Distributors, not to exceed 
$25,000.00, for police uniforms as funds were approved in the FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant 
to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
Councilman Petralanda pulled Items 9A and 9E.  Councilwoman Mitchell pulled Item 
9D for further discussion.  Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the rest of 
the Consent Agenda items for the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda items with pulled items 9A, 
9D, and 9E.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 
call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 
 



 
 3 

A) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Distreebutors, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County contract #1298-1/21-1 
(attached), in an amount not to exceed $47,502.50, for the purchase of street tree planting 
and planting of street trees, as funds were budgeted in the FY18/19 Budget pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the City Code 

 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read Item 9A for the record.  The City 
Council discussed the item further. Councilwoman Mitchell made a motion to 
approve the item as recommended by staff.  Vice Mayor Zapata seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and 
Mayor Bain. 
 

D) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the 
issuance of a Purchase Order to Safeware, Inc., utilizing U.S. Communities Contract 
#4400008468, in the amount of $24,624.00 for the purchase of forty-five (45) Avon First 
Responder C50 gas masks kits, as funds are in the projected FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read Item 9D for the record.  The City 
Council discussed the item further. Councilwoman Mitchell made a motion to 
approve the item as recommended by staff.  Vice Mayor Zapata seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and 
Mayor Bain. 

 
E) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council waive the 

competitive bid process in the best interests of the City, mainly due to they are the only local 
vendor in Miami-Dade County to provide police uniforms (we’ve established over a twenty-
year relationship), and approve an expenditure to Lou’s Police Distributors, not to exceed 
$25,000.00, for police uniforms as funds were approved in the FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant 
to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read Item 9E for the record.  The City 
Council discussed the item further. Councilman Petralanda made a motion to 
approve the item as recommended by staff.  Vice Mayor Zapata seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and 
Mayor Bain. 
 
10. Old Business:  None. 
 
11. New Business:  

 
A) Request for additional funding for the Emergency mold remediation work at 

the City Hall Building  
 



 
 4 

City Manager William Alonso read the staff memo for the record.  He then requested 
that Council approve the expenditure for the mold remediation at City Hall.  After 
some discussion, Councilman Best moved to approve the expenditure for City Hall 
mold remediation.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 
on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 

B) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the 
competitive bid process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold 
Assessment Report dated March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council 
(attached), and approve an expenditure to Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. in an 
amount of $10,000 for Mechanical Engineering Services, pursuant to the emergency 
procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code. Subsequent to our 
March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the attached contract with 
Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. so that work could commence. Staff also requests 
approval of the executed contract as part of this request 

 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the recommendation by staff.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman 
Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 

C)  Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the 
competitive bid process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold 
Assessment Report dated March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council 
(attached), and approve an expenditure to Synergy General Contracting, LLC,  (SGC) the 
lowest of three written quotes, in an amount of $234,400 for mold remediation and repairs 
at City hall  as funds were budgeted in the FY19/20 Budget pursuant to the emergency 
procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code. Subsequent to our 
March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the attached contract SGC so 
that work could commence. Staff also requests approval of the executed contract as part of 
this request 
 
Vice Mayor Zapata moved to approve the recommendation by staff.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman 
Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 

D) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council approve an 
expenditure to Thermal Concepts, a sole source provider for Trane, an authorized 
contractor, in an amount not to exceed $83,886 for the replacement of eight coil units 
related to the HVAC system in the City Hall facility pursuant to the emergency procurement 
process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation by staff.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman 
Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 



 
 5 

 
E) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the 

competitive bid process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold 
Assessment Report dated March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council 
(attached), and approve an expenditure to Williams Scotsman Inc. as a sole source 
provider, in an amount of $45,823 for a two month rental of two mobile office trailers, 
including furniture, installation and ADA compliance, pursuant to the emergency 
procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code 

 
Vice Mayor Zapata moved to approve the recommendation by staff.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman 
Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 
12. Other Business:  

 
A) Request by Vice Mayor Zapata to discuss the Miami-Dade County Circle 

Project 
 
Vice Mayor Zapata stated that she received calls from concerned residents about the 
new construction at the Circle, not only about the reduction in lanes and possibly 
more traffic, but that the proposed new Circle could possibly deter traffic to 
surrounding residential streets.  The City Manager explained that the County has 
determined that the new traffic pattern is intended to lower the traffic levels at the 
Circle.  He said it will take some time for people to adjust and the alternative thought 
is that it will lead people to look for other ways to get to Hialeah and not through the 
Springs.  Staff will place information on the City’s website on the new construction 
and new traffic pattern. 

 
B) COVID-19 Updates - City Council may Address any of their questions to City 

Department Heads 
 

There were no updates from Departments and the City Council had no questions at 
this time. 

 
C) Request by Councilman Best to discuss the reopening of the Golf Course and 

City Parks amid the COVID-19 pandemic 
 

City Attorney Haydee Sera stated that the County has issued an Order on the limited 
opening of open spaces and areas and golf courses effective April 29th.  Recreation 
Director Omar Luna described the opening of the City’s parks and limiting the hours 
of use by the public.  Golf Director Paul O’Dell also provided information on the golf 
course facility and procedures. 
 
Councilman Best made a motion to abide by the County’s order on reopening the 
golf course and City Parks, with the additional restrictions/limitations as 
recommended by Staff.  Councilwoman Mitchell seconded the motion, which carried 



 
 6 

5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 

D) Appointing a primary and secondary delegate to the Miami-Dade County 
League of Cities Board of Directors  

 
Councilman Best moved to appoint Councilwoman Mitchell as primary delegate.  
Vice Mayor Zapata seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote 
was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, 
Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 
Councilman Best moved to appoint Councilman Petralanda as alternate delegate.  
Councilwoman Mitchell seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, 
Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 
 

 13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera had no report at this time. 
                              

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager William Alonso had no report at this time. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Petralanda thanked the Optimist Club for Saturday’s food giveaway.  He 
stated that he has had recent discussions with Tony Silva of the Optimist Club about 
having another similar event at the City’s Recreation Center.  Virginia Gardens will 
contribute $1,000.00 and the City of Miami Springs will also commit $1,000.00 towards the 
event.  Councilman Petralanda requested that the City Council concede to the $1,000.00 
for the purchase of food for the event.  It was the City Council’s consensus to allocate 
$1,000.00 from the City Council Promotions account. 
 
Councilwoman Zapata had no report at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Mitchell had no report at this time. 
 
Councilman Best had no report at this time.    
 
Mayor Bain thanked the Optimist Club for hosting the food distribution event and also 
thanked Ricky Meats for their donation for the Saturday food event as well.     
 
   
 



 
 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 11th day of May, 2020. 
 
 



 
 8 

           
Billy Bain, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 





































RESOLUTION NO. 2020-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 
RATIFYING ALL EMERGENCY ORDERS ISSUED AND 
ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE CITY MANAGER RELATED TO 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS/COVID-19; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) is a severe 

acute respiratory illness that can spread among humans through respiratory 

transmission and presents symptoms similar to those of influenza; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 poses a public health risk to residents of the City of 

Miami Springs (the “City”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, Florida Governor Ron DeSantis issued Executive 

Order No. 20-51 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health 

Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, due to the risks posed by COVID-19, a State of 

Emergency was declared by Florida Governor Ron DeSantis and by Miami-Dade 

County Mayor Carlos Gimenez on March 12, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has issued emergency orders in order to mitigate 

and slow the transmission of COVID-19 within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to ratify any emergency orders previously 

issued and actions taken by the City Manager to protect the public from COVID-19; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest, 

health, and welfare of the residents of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Recitals. That each of the above-stated recitals are hereby 

adopted, confirmed, and incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Ratification. That the City Council hereby ratifies any emergency 

orders issued and any actions taken by the City Manager to protect the public from 

COVID-19 through the Effective Date of this Resolution. 



 
Res. No. 20-   

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 3. Effective Date. That this Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by      and upon being put to a 

vote, the vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Mara Zapata      
Councilman Bob Best      
Councilwoman Maria Puente Mitchell    
Councilman Jaime Petralanda      
Mayor Billy Bain       

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of May, 2020. 

 
 
 
              
      BILLY BAIN 

MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ-SANTAMARIA, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 


































	Agenda Summary - May 11, 2020
	Agenda Summary p.2
	Virtual Meeting Notice p.3-4
	6A Minutes - April 27, 2020
	9A Elderly Services Senior Center Software Approval
	11A Reso - Emergency Order 20-02 
	11C Graduation Parade

